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T-265 c. 1800
Dr. Dodson House
St. Michaels

private

The Dr. Dodson house is a two-story brick structure that was built in two
principal periods. The southern two-story, two-bay Flemish bond brick section with
its single-story service wing is one of a small collection of Federal period houses in
St. Michaels. In contrast to the others, it is one of the earliest and best
preserved. Its prominent corner site at the intersection of Locust and Cherry
streets adds to is significance as a pivotal building for this northern neighborhood
of the town. Surviving Federal period interior fabric includes the closed string stair,
six-panel doors on each floor, and a flush paneled cupboard in the current dining
room. The mid nineteenth-century addition partially obscurred the old house, but
the enlargement followed popular trends of the time with bracketed eaves and a

two-story porch with sawn balusters.

The c 1800 date of construction for the early portion of this two-story brick
house can be supported by several turn of the century deeds and newspaper
advertisements. On April 15, 1802, Joseph Harrison of Thomas transferred to
Samuel Harrison, "that lot or parcel of land situate within the limits of the Town
of St. Michaels in Talbot County aforesaid, on which a brick dwelling house hath
lately been erected..."(29/354) 1In addition, an advertisement was circulated in the

August 25, 1801 issue of the Maryland Herald and Eastern Shore Intelligencer, "TO

LET, Brick Dwelling house lately occupied as a tavern at St. Michaels." Since the
structure is not listed on the 1798 Federal tax assessment for the town, it must be

presumed the house was erected during the next two years. Samuel Harrison once
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again advertised the town property in the August 11, 1927 issue of the Easton
Gazette. The entry reads, "TO RENT--a two-story brick dwelling house and garden,
near the steam mill in St. Michaels; and several other small houses and gardens.
For terms apply to Samuel Harrison, Canton." Following this ad there is a gap in
the chain of title until a transfer in 1855 from Adam and Mary Camper to Elisha
Thomas (78/397). After a deed transfer in 1872, Dr. Robert Dodson acquired the
property fromt the attorney of William H. Bruff in 1878 (86/139). For the next
thirty-nine years the property remained in the hands of the Dodson family, and they
were evidently responsible for the major nineteenth-century alterations. In 1919,
Mary Dodson took a mortgage on the house for $700 to Ella V. Watkins (182/328).

Since the 1920s the property has had three principal owners.
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DOE

__yes Xno

1. Name

€indicate preferred name)

historic

and/orcommon Dr. Dodson House

2. Location

street & number Locust Street

____not for publication

city, town St. Michaels — vicinity of congressional district First

state Maryland county Talbot

3. Classification

Category Ownership Status Present Use

. district- . public X occupied . agriculture — museum

_ X building(s) X private __ unoccupied ____ commercial ___park

—— structure — both ____work in progress - educational X private residence

. Site Public Acquisition Accessible ____ entertainment — religious

~.__ object —in process _X yes: restricted — government ___ scientific
— being considered __yes: unrestricted — industrial . transportation
_x not applicable _ no ____ military —other:

4- Owner Of Property (give names and mailing addresses of all owners)

name Richard Guay

street & number 12540 Apache Road

telephone no.:

" city, town Albuguerque

state and zip code New Mexico 87112

5. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Talbot Clerk of Court liber
street & number Talbot County Courthouse folio
city, town Easton state A

6. Representation in Existing nistorical surveys

titie Maryland Historic Sites Inventory

gate 1967 —___federal _X state ____county ___ local
«epository for surveyrecords  Maryland Historical Trust

city, town Annapolis state MD 21401




7. Description Survey No.T_265

Condition Check one Check one

——_excellent — deteriorated ____ unaltered — X original site

—X good ____ruins _X_altered — moved date of move
—_ftair ___ unexposed

Prepare both a summary paragraph and a general description of the resource and its
various elements as it exists today.

Dr. Dodson House description

The Dr. Dodson house stands on the southeast corner of the intersection of
Locust Street and Cherry Street in St. Michaels, Talbot County, Maryland. The two-
story brick house faces west with the principal gable oriented on a north/south

axis.

The two-story, three-bay brick house was built in two principal stages,
beginning with a c. 1800 Flemish bond brick side hall/parlor brick house with a
single-story three-course common bond rear kitchen wing. Around 1860, a two-story
five-course common bond brick addition was attached to the north gable end of the
original brick house. The service Wing was enlarged ten years ago. Supported by an
eXCavated brick foundation, the brick house is covered by a steeply pitched asphalt

shingle-roof.

The west (main) elevation is three bays across with a dQuble—leaf paneled
door located in the center bay. A three-light transom is topped by a later wooden
lintel and the early ovolo window and door surrounds have been replaced with a half-round
molding. ILouvered shutters flank the first and second floor four over four sash
windows which are topped by brick jack arches. A second floor door (formerly a
window) allows access to the second floor of the two—story'porch. A small-
casement-type window has been inserted between thé first and second bay from the
left. The shed roofed porch is supported by chamfered posts and is decorated with
scrolled éorner brackets. Sawn baluster handrails stretch between the first and
second floor porch posts. Two six over six sash gabled dormers are evenly spaced

on the west roof slope.

The soﬁth gable end of‘the eariy'portion of the house is a three-course
common bond brick wall with a gabled weatherboard frame entrance that leads to the

_partially exca?ated cellar. Six over six sash windows with mortise and tenon, ovolo

molded backband sﬁrrounds remain on the gable end and flank the interior end brickf
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chimney. Small four-pane windows light the attic, and a one tapered bargeboard

remains in place.

The east (rear) elevation is an asymmetrical facade that is partially covered
by the single-story three-course common bond brick kitchen. Six over six sash with
ovolo molded surrounds remain consistent with the south gable end windows. In
addition there is no seam on the south end between the front and rear sections,
which indicates the old part of the single-story kitchen is contemporary with the
c. 1800 front part of the house. The center rear bay of the main house is marked by a
six—pahel door, while the second floor is lighted by early six over six sash windows
that retain their ovolo molded surrounds. The c. 1860 addition is lighted on each
floor by four over four sash windows. ZEvenly spaced on the roof are two six over

six sash gabled dormers.

The north gable end of the c¢. 1860 addition has two four over four sash
windows with louvered shutters and brick jack arches that light each floor. The gable

P

end eave is bracketed, and an interior end brick stack rises above the roofline.

The center hall retains its Federal period stair with its slender newel post,
and molded handrail. A series of square balusters rise from a closed, undecorated
stringer. The space below the stringer is enclosed with vertical beaded boards. A
raised six-panel door framed by a cyma curve backband surround opens into the
south room. In the Dining Room the plain mid nineteenth—century mantel is a replacement,
but the adjacent (right) alcove is filled with a Federal period flush panel cupboard
framed by a cyma curve surround. The room is fitted with beaded baseboard. The parlor
(north) room is finished in a straightforwafd manner with a period mantel and
baseboard. The kitchen is entered through a six-panel door opening from the dining
room. The kitchen interior has been remodeled to a large degree and extended by a

modern addition to the east.

The second floor has not been significantly altered. The south bedroom retains
a Federal period treatment with a cyma curve hearth surround and a six-panel door. The
turn of the nineteenth-century stair continues to the third floor, which was evidently
finished off at a later date. Four-panel doors with porcelain knobs open into the three

plastered rooms. The peak space above the third floor is inaccessible.




8. Significance Survey No. T_ogs

Period Areas of Significance—Check and justify below
— prehistoric ____ archeology-prehistoric ____ community planning ____ landscape architecture rel_igion
--.1400-1499 ____ archeology-historic ____ conservation — law —__science
1500-1599 ___ agriculture —_ economics — literature — sculpture
—1600-1699 __x architecture —— education —military —_social/
— 1700-1799 ___ art - engineering — - music humanitarian
—x1800-1899 ____ commerce — exploration/settlement ___ philosophy — theater
— 1900~ - communications —_industry —— politics/government =~ __ transportation
—_invention — other (specify)
Specific dates Builder/Architect
check: Applicable Criteria: _A _ B XC _ D
and/or :
Applicable Exception: _ A _ B _C _ b _E _F _ G
Level of Significance: _ national __ state Qé;ocal

Prepare both a summary paragraph of significance and a geﬂ\eral statement of history and
support. '

The Dr. Dodson house is a two-story brick structure that was built in two
periods. The southern two-story, two-bay Flemish bond brick section with its
single-story service wing is one of a small collection of two-story Federal period
houses in St. Michaels. In contrast to the others, it is one of the earliest and best
preserved. Its prominent corner site at the intersection of Locust and Cherry _
streets adds to its significance as a pivotal building for this northern neighborhood

“7°f the town. Surviving Federal period interior fabric includes the closér'Stfinger ‘
stair, six-panel doors on each floor, and a flush paneled cupboard in the present
dining room. The mid nineteenth-century addition partially obscured the old house

- but followed popular trends at the time with its bracketed eave and two-story porch
with sawn balusters and decorative corner brackets.

HISTORY AND SUPPORT

The c¢. 1800 date of construction for the early portion of this two-story brick
house can be supported by sevefal turn of the century deeds and newspaper advertisements.
On April 15, 1802, Joseph Harrison of Thomas transferred to Samuel Harrison, '"that lot
or parcel of land situate within the limits of the Town of St. Michaels in,Talbot
County aforesaid, on which a brick dwelling house hath lately been erected..." In
addition, an advertisement was circulated in the August 25, 1801 issue of the Maryland
Herald and Eastern Shore Intelligencer, "TO LET, Brick Dwelling house lately occupied
as a tavern at St. Michaels." Since the structure is not listed on the 1798 Federal

tax assessment for the town, it must be presumed fhe house was erected during the next
two years. Samuel Harrison once again advertised the town property in the August 11,1827

~=gsue of the Easton Gazette. The advertisement reads, '"TO RENT--a two-story brick
\‘ ‘ [
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dwelling house and garden, near the steam mill in St. Michaels; and several other small
houses and gardens. For terms apply to Samuel Harrison, Canton." Following this ad
there is a gap in the chain of title until a transfer in 1855 from Adam and Mary Camper

to Elisha Thomas (Vol. 78/397). After a deed transfer in 1872, Dr. Robert Dodson acquired
the property from the attorney of William H. Bruff in 1878 (Vol. 86/139). For the next
thirty-three years the property remained in the hands of the Dodson fmaily. In 1919,

Mary Dodson took a mortgage on the house for $700 to Ella V. Watkins (Vol. 182/328).

Since the 1920s the property has had three principal owners.




9. Major Bibliographical References Survey No. q_ogs

10. Geographical Data

Acreage of nominated property

Quadrangle name Quadrangle scale

UIM References do NOT complete UTM references
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Verbal boundary description and justification

List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries

state code county

code

_state code county

.code

11. Form Prepared By

name/titie Paul Touart - Architectural Historian

organization Historic St. Michaels date 10/10/85
street & number _ telephone

city or town St. Michaels state  MD

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created by
an Act of the Maryland Legislature to be found in the Annotated
Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA, 1974 supplement.

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and
record purposes only and do not constitute any infringement of

individual property rights.

return to: Maryland Historical Trust
Shaw House
21 State Circle
Annapolis, Maryland 21401
(301) 269-2438

PS-2746
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"DR. DODSON'S HOUSE" (CORNER LOCUST & CHERRY)

YEAR: 1977 VOL: 512 ©PAGE: 184 |

FROM: Mary C Smithers, Wm F Rigby and Mary PRICE: $5

TO : Richard F Guay

NOTES: Begin at NW corner of land formerly owned by Ella Virginia Watkins on S
side of Cherry Street; run W 67'3 1/2" to Locust Street; then S 81' to the late
Edward Willey (now Charles Willey); with Willey East 72' 2 1/2" to Watkins; then
N to beginning.

Same land conveyed by Mary C Smithers, Widow with a life estate, 1968,
426/190

YEAR: 1968 VOL: 426 PAGE: 190

FROM: Mary C Smithers, widow PRICE: L & A

TO : William F and Mary Rigby

NOTES: Conveyed to Mary Smithers by Virginia A Swanhaus, widow et al
1955, 325/411.

YEAR: 1955 VOL: 325 PAGE: 411

FROM: Virginia A Swanhaus, widow, and Irma A PRICE: $8125

Urner+Joseph

TO : Mary C Smithers

NOTES: Conveyed by Edna V Killen , unmarried to James E Swanhaus, Virginia A

~"anhaus, and Irma A Urner 1929,219/486. On death of James E Swanhaus property
.ot to Virginia A Swanhaus

YEAR: 1925 VOL: 204 PAGE: 464

FROM: Melba R Covey PRICE: $5

TO : James Edward Swanhaus

NOTES: Conveyed by Ella Virginia Watkins et al to James E & Virginia Swanhaus
1925, 204/216.

Conveyed by Swanhaus to Melba R Covey, 1925, 204/462

YEAR: 1925 VOL: 204 PAGE: 216

FROM: Ella V Watkins & J Edward Watkins & St. PRICE: $2000

Michaels Bank

TO : James Edward Swanhaus

NOTES: Conveyed by Mary A Dodson to Ella Virginia Watkins 1919, 182/327

YEAR: 1919 VOL: 182 PAGE: 328

FROM: Ella V Watkins & Husband PRICE:
TO : Mary A Dodson

NOTES: Mortgage for $700




DR. DODSON'S HOUSE T-265 PAGE TWO

YEAR: 1919 VOL: 182 PAGE: 327

FROM: Mary A Dodson PRICE: $900

TO : Ella Virginia Watkins

NOTES: Conveyed to Mary A Dodson by Robert A Dodson 1911, 160/432

YEAR: 1911 VOL: 160 PAGE: 432

FROM: Robert A Dodson PRICE: $100

TO : Mary A Dodson, his wife

NOTES: Conveyed to Robert A Dodson by John Harper, atty for William H Bruff and
S Louisa Bruff 1878, 86/139

YEAR: 1878 VOL: 86 PAGE: 139

FROM: John C Harper, atty for Wm H Bruff PRICE: $1200

TO : Dr Robert A Dodson

NOTES: In 1877, Wm H Bruff and wife Louisa gave a power of attorney to John C
Harper to sell the land herein described. Totals 5670 sq ft

YEAR: 1872 VOL: 78 PAGE: 347

FROM: Elisha Thomas & Maggie Thomas PRICE: $1000

TO : Sarah Louisa Bruff

NOTES: Conveyed to Thomas by Adam Camper 1855, 66/397

YEAR: 1855 VOL: 66 PAGE: 397

FROM: Adam Camper and Mary Camper PRICE: $350

TO : Elisha Thomas

NOTES: 5670 square feet. Bernice Leonard referred the following: 1840 Tax
Assessment (Hall of Records): Joseph Camper - lot in St. Michaels; 1/6 acre;
brick dwelling house & kitchen; $166

Under "Inventories (JD#1) 1851-1854. Inventory of Joseph Camper: house and lot
in Town of St, Michaels $500. Inventoried 1851.

Under Joseph Camper's Will (10/61) leaves to sister Sarah and her son ADAM: all
residue....real, personal, and mixed".

No documentary evidence as to how Joseph Camper acquired the property has been
found. The following newspaper references show ownership by Samuel Harrison

at least until 1827. Samuel Harrison died in 1837.

YEAR: 1827 EASTON GAZETTE, 11 August 1827.

"TO RENT"

"A two-story brick dwelling house and garden, near the steam mill at St.
Michaels; and several other small houses and gardens. For terms apply to
Samuel Harrison, Canton." ‘
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"DR. DODSON'S HOUSE" PAGE THREE

—

YEAR: 1824 VOL: PAGE: Vi
FROM:  PRICE: \i P,
TO :

NOTES: EASTON GAZETTE, 4 September 1824:

TO RENT FOR THE NEXT YEAR

"A 2 story brick dwelling house near the steam mill, at present occupied
by Mr Thomas Sherwood. For terms apply to Samuel Harrison"

YEAR: 1802 VOL: 29 PAGE: 354

FROM: Joseph Harrison of Thomas PRICE: pl424

TO : Samuel Harrison

NOTES: See attached deed referring to a recently-erected brick dwelling house.

The "main road'", "road to Robert Dodson's'", and "Haddaway's Lot" can be
positively identified, but not "Joseph Harrison's pales on the main road".

YEAR: 1801 VOL: PAGE: '
FROM: PRICE: @
TR S

NOTES: NEWSPAPER ABSTRACTS, V. 1 BY IRMA HARPER: Item 412

a—

{OM MARYLAND HERALD & EASTERN SHORE INTELLIGENCER 25 Aug 1801 (In Library,
Maryland Historical Society) "Brick dwelling house lately occupied as a
tavern at St Michaels by Samuel Harrison, for let".

(>)




FROM THE MARYLAND HERALD AND EASTERN SHORE INTELLIGENCER

August 22, 1801 & subsequent.
TO BE LET

That Convenient two-story brick dwelling house, kitchen, stable and
excellent garden, lately occupied as a tavern, at St. Michaeis ————— As the
ferries on the Bayside are well-~established, also the mail crossing from Annapolis
by this route to Easton; and as this house is about 12 miles from Easton and
about the same distance from the ferry, it is expected it will be a very good
stand for a tavern, as there is a great number of gentlemen passes through

St. Michaels to and from the ferry.

Samuel Harrison

This must be the "Dr. Dodson House".
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DR. DODSOINl IHOUSE T-265
St. HMichaels, Talbot County, laryland
East Elevation

5/85, Paul Touart, Photographer
IIEG/1ID. Historical Trust
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DR. DODSOIl HOUSE T-265
St. Michaels, Talbot County, Maryland
llorthwest Elevation

5/85, Paul Touart, Photographer
NEG/MD. Historical Trust
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DR. DODSON HOUSE T-265 |
St. Michaels, Talbot County, Haryland
Vest Elevation

5/85, Paul Touart, PHotogrpaher
HEG/HD. Historical Trust
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DR. DODSON HOUSE T-265
St. Michaels, Talbot County, Maryland
Vlest Elevation

5/85, Paul Touart, Photogrpaher

NEG/MD. Historical Trust







DR. DODSON HOUSE T-265

St. Michaels, Talbot County, Maryland

Staircase
5/85, Paul Touart, Photographer
HEG/NMD. Historicla Trust
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